ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 3, 2017
3:21 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Sam Kito, Chair

Represent ati ve Adam Whol, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson
Representative Louise Stutes
Representative Chris Birch
Representative Gary Knopp
Representative Coll een Sullivan-Leonard

VEMBERS ABSENT
Representative Bryce Edgnon (alternate)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 18
"An Act relating to race classics.”

- MOVED HB 18 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 49
"An Act extending the termnation date of the Board of Certified
Direct-Entry Mdw ves; and providing for an effective date."
- MOVED HB 49 OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 18

SHORT TITLE: RACE CLASSI CS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) ORTI Z

01/ 18/ 17 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 17

01/ 18/ 17 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H L&C, FIN

01/ 30/ 17 (H L&C AT 3:30 PM BARNES 124

01/ 30/ 17 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 30/ 17 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 03/ 17 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

Bl LL: HB 49

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -1- February 3, 2017



SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND BOARD OF DI RECT- ENTRY M DW VES
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) KI TO

01/ 18/ 17 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 17 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 01/ 17 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

02/ 01/ 17 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 01/ 17 (H M NUTE( L&C)

02/ 03/ 17 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE DAN ORTI Z

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prinme sponsor, presented HB 18.

KATRI NA M TCHELL, Gam ng G oup Manager

Tax Divi sion

Departnent of Revenue (DOR)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 18.

JANEY HOVENDEN, Director

D vision of Corporations, Business, and Professional Licensing
( DCBPL)

Depart ment of Comrerce, Conmunity & Economi c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on HB 49.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:21: 32 PM

CHAIR SAM KITO called the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:21 p.m Represent ati ves Wol ,
Josephson, Stutes, Birch, Knopp, Sullivan-Leonard, and Kito were

present at the call to order.

HB 18- RACE CLASSI CS

3:21:56 PM

CHAI R KI TO announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 18, "An Act relating to race classics.”

3:22:44 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- February 3, 2017



CHAI R KI TO cl osed public testinmny on HB 18.
3:23:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH noved to adopt Anmendnent 1, [l abeled 30-
LSO199\A. 1, Martin, 1/31/17], which read as foll ows:

Page 1, lines 4 - 10:
Delete all material and insert:

"(40) "race classic" nmeans a gane of chance
where prizes are awarded for the closest guess or
guesses of the official winning tines of a human race
or races [, AND IS LIMTED TO THE MI. MARATHON RACE
CLASSIC OPERATED AND ADM NI STERED BY THE SEWARD
CHAMBER OF COWVIVERCE CONVENTI ON AND VI SI TORS' BUREAU] ;"

REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH stated that the amendnent renoves the need
for Ketchikan to ask for legislation for the race classic. He
al so nentioned a letter of support from Seward.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL obj ected for di scussion purposes.
3:24: 06 PM

REPRESENTATIVE DAN ORTIZ, Alaska State Legislature, prine
sponsor of HB 18, stated that he is neutral to the anendnent.
He nentioned that he has heard sone concern from his community
about the potential of other groups being able to "hop on" to
the Race to Alaska or other race classics around the state.
Not wi t hst andi ng that, he acknow edged that in order to do so, a
group woul d have to have a permt.

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH stated that HB 18 brought new information
to him He noted the effort, energy, and initiative taken by
the [ G eater Ketchikan Chanber of Comrerce] to be added to host
a classic, and he stated that the anendnent would sinplify the
process. The anendnent allows any comunity, appropriately
regulated with a gamng permt, to do a simlar fundraiser. The
amendnent reduces the anmount of state statutes in consideration.

3:26:40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP spoke in support of Amendrment 1, which
sinmplifies comunity participation in annual events. He
menti oned there are other safeguards in place.

3:27:20 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- February 3, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE WOOL stated that pre-existing classics would be
diluted if every comunity had a classic. He asked if a gam ng
permt is easy to obtain and could be used for nultiple events.

REPRESENTATI VE BIRCH said the legislature doesn't need to be in
"the business of picking the winners and |osers.” He noted that
the bill addresses the definition of race classics, and in the
years since the law has been around, there has only been one
race classic. He stated that Amendnent 1 would sinplify the
process and nake for better governance. He opined that it is
not the legislature's business to determne which communities
can have cl assics. He said, "Let the entrepreneurial spirit
rise, and if sonebody wants to have a classic ... we should not
stand in the way."

3:29: 48 PM

CHAIR KITO clarified that ice classics are identified in a
separate part of the sane statute.

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL muai nt ai ned his objection.
3:30: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z asked for [the Departnment of Revenue's]
observation on the |ikelihood of a piling-on effect if Amendnment
1 was adopt ed.

CHAI R KI TO paraphrased Representative Otiz's question about the
i npact of not identifying individual classics on the success of
any individual classic.

REPRESENTATI VE ORTI Z reiterated the concerns of his constituency
and the Geater Ketchikan Chanber of Comerce about the
potential of groups to pile on to existing races.

3:31:51 PM

KATRINA M TCHELL, Gaming Goup Mnager, Tax D vision, stated
that she cannot answer the question. She stated that nothing
has cone to her attention [regarding a piling-on effect], and
that there is not a |ist of groups wanting to get in on classics
l[imted to certain organizations. She stated that it is hard to
predi ct how groups woul d react.

3:33: 08 PM

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -4- February 3, 2017



A roll call vote was taken. Represent ati ves Knopp, Sullivan-
Leonard, and Birch vot ed in favor of Amendnent 1
Representatives Stutes, Josephson, Wol, and Kito voted agai nst
it. Therefore, Anendnent 1 failed to be adopted by a vote of 3-
4.

3:33:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL noved to report HB 18, out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 18 was noved from the House Labor
and Comrerce Standing Commttee.

3:34: 24 PM

The commttee took an at ease from3:34 p.m to 3:37 p.m

HB 49- EXTEND BOARD OF DI RECT- ENTRY M DW VES

3:37: 08 PM

CHAI R KI TO announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 49, "An Act extending the term nation date of the
Board of Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves; and providing for an
effective date."

3:37:43 PM
CHAI R KI TO cl osed public testinmny on HB 49.
3:38: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE Bl RCH asked how the total cost would be assessed
goi ng forward.

CHAIR KITO clarified that the question regards the cost for the
board' s backl og and previously incurred costs.

3:38:59 PM

JANEY HOVENDEN, Director, Division of Corporations, Business,
and Professional Licensing (DCBPL), Departrment of Conmerce,
Community & Economi ¢ Devel opnent (DCCED), stated that the | atest
fee analysis set the fees at $3,800 for new and renewal
| i censes. The current fees are predicted to get the board out
of deficit by 2021.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- February 3, 2017



REPRESENTATI VE BI RCH asked if the cunulative deficit would be
"“ni bbl ed away" every year by the $4, 000 fees.

M5. HOVENDEN answered that is correct.
3:40: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL asked if the board is allowed to keep a
sur pl us.

M5. HOVENDEN stated that is correct; boards have carry-forward
[funds] from year to year. She noted that currently the fees
are very steep to get the board out of deficit and would stay at
that level until there is a reasonable surplus, after which an
anal ysis could be done, resulting in fees being set at a nuch
nore reasonabl e | evel

3:41:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked how |icensing would be handled if the
board i s not extended.

M5. HOVENDEN stated that the board is set to sunset June 30,
2017. Statute allows for a one-year period for the board to
help transition to managenent by DCCED, which woul d be effective
July 1, 2018.

REPRESENTATI VE KNOPP asked whether the departnment would be the
only qualified rmanagenent of the profession - the board nenbers
woul d no | onger be qualified.

M5. HOVENDEN stated that is correct. She stated the departnent
woul d still need consultation fromthe industry for assistance.

3:43: 14 PM

CHAIR KITO asked if the legislature is exceeding statutory
authority in authorizing the satisfaction of arrears over
mul ti pl e bi enni uns.

M5. HOVENDEN stated that there is an allowance to recover a
deficit over a nunber of bienniuns, so as to not restrict people
fromtheir livelihoods and to continue access to mdw fery care
in Al aska.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- February 3, 2017



CHAIR KITO stated his desire to ensure that boards have adequate
opportunity and statutory ability to address significant debt.
He noted that another piece of legislation, which will be before
the House Labor and Conmerce Standing Comrittee [at a later
date], m ght address the board' s debt in a different way.

3:44: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WOOL noved to report HB 49 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.
There being no objection, HB 49 was noved from House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmitt ee.

3:45:10 PM

The conmttee took an at ease from3:45 p.m to 3:47 p. m

3:47:37 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
3:48 p. m

HOUSE L&C COWM TTEE -7- February 3, 2017



